
MHCWD – 9-17-20 Agenda - Page 1 of 3 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

MMIIDDWWAAYY  HHEEIIGGHHTTSS  CCOOUUNNTTYY  WWAATTEERR  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  

September 17, 2020 @ 7:00 P.M. 

Note: Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20 and given the state of 
emergency regarding the threat of COVID-19, the meeting will be held via webinar 
on the Zoom application. The web link is: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82830337976?pwd=YnpxcHpVeHdoSXF6Vk5xVC9VUmVLdz09 

Meeting ID: 828 3033 7976  Passcode:  695157

The meeting may also be accessed via phone at the toll-free number of: 

 833 548 0276, 833 548 0282,  877 853 5247 or 888 788 0099 

Information on zoom meeting may be found at: 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-meeting 

❖ This agenda has been prepared and posted at least 72 hours prior to the regular board 
meeting of the Midway Heights County Water District Board of Directors in accordance with 
the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

❖ The chronological order of agenda items does not necessarily mean that each item will be 
considered in that order.  Any listed items may be considered at any time during the 
meeting, at the discretion of the Board President. 

❖ The public may address the Board on each agenda item during the Board's consideration of 
that item. Any members of public present at a meeting will be asked but are not required to 
state their name to the Board Secretary so that their attendance may be made a matter of 
public record.  

❖ The Board is prohibited by law from taking action on any matter not appearing on the posted 
agenda, except in certain cases provided for in the Brown Act. 

❖ In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you 
need a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, 
please contact Jason Tiffany at (530) 878-8096 (phone) or (530) 878-8096 (fax).  Requests 
must be made as early as possible, and at least one full business day before the start of the 
meeting. 

❖ In accordance with Government Code Sec. 54954.2 (a) this notice and agenda were posted 
at the following locations:  MHCWD Office; Meadow Vista Post Office; Meadow Vista Village 
Center; at the intersection of Placer Hills and Peaceful Valley Roads; at the intersection of 
Oak Hill and Hillsdale Roads and Meadow Vista Community Center. 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-meeting


MHCWD – 9-17-20 Agenda - Page 2 of 3 
  
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS 
 
III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes from the June 18, 2020 Regular Meeting will be discussed and may 

be approved. 
 
IV. PUBLIC FORUM 
 

This time is scheduled for comments from members of the public concerning 
subjects that do not specifically appear as items elsewhere on the agenda. The 
total time allotted for the public forum session is generally limited to 20 minutes.  
Discussion on each particular issue is limited to 10 minutes.  Individuals are limited 
to approximately 3 minutes of public comments. 

V. GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

A. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: ITEMS TO BE PLACED ON CONSENT 
CALENDAR. 
 

B. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: COYOTE HILLS ESTATE PUMPING 
STATION, DEEDED FIRE EASEMENT, PUBLIC ACCESS TO DISTRICT 
EASMENTS AND ACCUSATION BY CUSTOMER JIM MEHL THAT THE 
DISTRICT BLOCKED ACCESS TO A COMMUNITY EMERENCY FIRE 
ESCAPE ROUTE ON BRIDLE PATH ROAD AND NATURE’S WAY. 

 
C. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 

2020-03 BIENNIAL REVIEW OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
The Political Reform Act requires every local government agency to review its 
conflict of interest code every two years to determine if it is accurate, or if 
amendments are needed.  

 
D. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: SET DATE AND LOCATION FOR SPECIAL 

MEETING: CLOSED SESSION GENERAL MANAGER PERFORMANCE 
EVALUATION 
  

E. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE: APPOINTMENT OF AD-HOC COMMITTEE TO 
NEGOTIATE CHANGE TO GENERAL MANAGER’S COMPENSATION AND 
BENEFITS 

 
 

VI. DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORTS  
 

A. DIRECTORS' REPORTS 
 

 B. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT  
 



MHCWD – 9-17-20 Agenda - Page 3 of 3 
  
 

 C. FIELD OPERATIONS REPORT  
 

 
 
VII.  FINANCIAL 
 

A. TREASURER'S REPORT- APPROVAL OF ACCOUNT TRANSFERS AND 
BILLS PAID 

 
Fund Summaries and Checking Account Reconciliation Registers showing the 
balances of all of the District's funds and bills paid for the months of June and 
July 2020 will be reviewed, discussed, and acted upon by the Board. 

 
VIII. BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSION AND CALENDAR REVIEW  

The Board and staff may take this opportunity to ask questions; provide or receive 
information; make requests or provide direction regarding subsequent meeting 
agendas.  

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

MHCWD – 8-20-2020 Minutes – Page 1 of 4  
 

MMIIDDWWAAYY  HHEEIIGGHHTTSS  CCOOUUNNTTYY  WWAATTEERR  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  
 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 

August 20, 2020 @ 7:00 P.M. 
 

Note: Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20, and given the state of 
emergency regarding the threat of COVID-19, the meeting was held via webinar. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 With a quorum present, President Craig Stone called the meeting to order at 7:08 pm. 
 
II. ROLL CALL  
  
 DIRECTORS PRESENT: Craig Stone      
   David Wiltsee 
   Donald Rushton 
   Tracy Langlands  
       
 DIRECTORS ABSENT:  Vacant position       

        
 OTHERS PRESENT: Jason Tiffany, General Manager-Secretary to the Board 
    
            
 MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: Jim Mehl.  
      Richard Goodwin 
      Pauline Nevins 
      Tina Leahy 
   
III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
 M/S  Tracy Langlands/Don Rushton moved to approve the minutes from the June 18, 

2020 Regular Meeting as amended. 
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent  Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

  
 
IV. PUBLIC FORUM   
 

Jim Mehl asked that the issue of gates across District property that are restricting 
public access to a potential fire escape route be on the next agenda.  

 
V. GENERAL BUSINESS    
 



 

MHCWD – 8-20-2020 Minutes – Page 2 of 4  
 

A. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 2020-
02 AMENDING SECTION 2.2.7 OF THE DISTRICT CODE ADDING A CONSENT 
CALENDAR TO THE ORDER OF BUSINESS FOR REGULAR BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETINGS. 

 
M/S David Wiltsee / Tracy Langlands moved to approve the resolution.  
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent  Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 
B. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT FOR 

STRATEGIC-PLANNING SERVICES WITH EYLON STRATEGIES IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $20,000. 
 
After taking public comment and Board discussion M/S Craig Stone / David Wiltsee 
moved to table this item. 
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent  Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 
 

C. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: APPOINTMENT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF MHCWD DUE TO VACANCY 
 
M/S Tracy Langlands / David Wiltsee  The Board decided to not appoint a Director 
and let the public vote in November for the replacement Board member 
 
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent  Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 



 

MHCWD – 8-20-2020 Minutes – Page 3 of 4  
 

D. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: SET DATE AND LOCATION FOR SPECIAL 
MEETING: CLOSED SESSION GENERAL MANAGER PERFORMANCE 
EVALUATION 
 
M/S Craig Stone / Tracy Langlands moved to table this item. 
 

 
Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent  Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 
 

E. DISCUSSION & ACTION RE: APPOINTMENT OF AD-HOC COMMITTEE TO 
NEGOTIATE CHANGE TO GENERAL MANAGER’S COMPENSATION AND 
BENEFITS 
 
M/S Craig Stone / Don Rushton moved to table this item. 
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent  Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 
   
VI. DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORTS  
 

A. DIRECTORS' REPORTS 
 
None 

 
 B. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT  
 

None 
 
 C. FIELD OPERATIONS REPORT  
   

Reported that the District fixed two treated leaks on Bridle Path Road.. 
 

VII.  FINANCIAL. 



 

MHCWD – 8-20-2020 Minutes – Page 4 of 4  
 

 
A. TREASURER'S REPORT- APPROVAL OF ACCOUNT TRANSFERS AND BILLS 

PAID 
 
Discussion and review of the Fund Summary, Checking Account Reconciliation, and 
Check Register showing the balances of all the District's funds and bills paid for the 
months of June and July 2020. 
 
M/S Craig Stone/Tracy Langlands moved to accept the report. 
 

Craig Stone Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Tracy Langlands Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Donald Rushton Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
David Wiltsee Aye X Nay  Absent  Abstain  
Vacant Aye  Nay  Absent X Abstain  
         
Board Totals Aye 4 Nay  Absent  Abstain  
          
Passed Unanimously: Yes X       

 
 
IX. BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSION AND CALENDAR REVIEW  

 
The General Manager stated that the agenda would probably look similar next month to this 
agenda since so many items were tabled. 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

President Stone adjourned the meeting at 8:48 pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,       Approved, 
 
 
 
             
        
Jason Tiffany       Craig Stone 
Secretary to the Board     President of the Board 
Midway Heights County Water District 
 
Dated:     
 

 
Midway Heights County Water District 

All Attachments, Ordinances, Resolutions, Policies, etc. are on file with Midway Heights County 
Water District. 

Copies are available upon request. 



MHCWD              09/17/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-A 

  

 
 
 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: ITEMS TO BE PLACED ON CONSENT 

CALENDAR. 
 
 
Suggest items for consent calendar: 
 

1. MINUTES 
2. MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION AND CORRESPONDENCE 
3. POLICIES & PROCEDURES, if just an update and of a routine nature. 
4. DIRECTORS' REPORTS 
5. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
6. FIELD OPERATIONS REPORT 
7. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 



MHCWD              09/17/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-B 
 

  

 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: COYOTE HILLS ESTATE PUMPING 

STATION, DEEDED FIRE EASEMENT, PUBLIC ACCESS TO DISTRICT 
EASMENTS AND ACCUSATION BY CUSTOMER JIM MEHL THAT THE 
DISTRICT BLOCKED ACCESS TO A COMMUNITY EMERENCY FIRE 
ESCAPE ROUTE ON BRIDLE PATH ROAD AND NATURE’S WAY. 

 
Customer Jim Mehl has asked for this item to be on the agenda. He and his wife assert 
that the District blocked a fire escape route by installing gates on District property. 
Additionally, they have sent an email to at least one Board member stating that “Jason 
has presented this to the Board as a security issue in the past.  I feel pretty sure that the 
members of the Board have just taken his word for it” (see attachment #1). The District 
coordinated the install of the gates with the fire department. The fire department has 
keys to the gates. The District held four meetings on this very subject. One meeting 
included an onsite visit by the Board and the District’s attorney.    
 
From the April 25, 2013 minutes: 
 
           
III. CLOSED SESSION CONSULTATION UNDER GOVERNMENT CODE 

SECTION 54957(A) WITH LEGAL COUNSEL CONCERNING A THREAT TO 
PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES, OR FOR THE ASSESSMENT OF THE 
SECURITY VULNERABILITY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES. The Board president 
called for public comment after the closed session item was announced and 
before the Board adjourned to closed session at 7:20 pm. 
 
Members of the public addressed the Board on a wide range of topics:  

• Mr. Goodin questioned the Board’s right to meet in closed session and the 
possibility of Brown Act violations on this topic and the need to not fence 
off District property because of public safety.  Mr. Goodin objected to the 
showing of a picture of his personal property that was blocking a fire 
hydrant.  

• Mr. Anderson wanted to continue to have access on District property. 

• Mr. Beaman wanted to have access across District property as an open 
exit for an emergency escape. 

• Mr. Pieper stated he wished the District had provided better notice prior to 
the fencing and gating of District property. 
 
 

IV. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION DISCUSSION & ACTION RE: SECURITY AND 
EMERGENCY ACCESS AT 0.33 MG TREATED TANK LOCATION:  7:45 pm 
The Board had previously directed Mr. Tiffany to contact the following for 
research purposes: 



MHCWD              09/17/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-B 
 

  

 

• Placer Title to define the “Conditions of Title Guarantee;” 

• Placer County Clerk to provide the District’s “Legal Deeds and 
Easements;” 

• County of Placer Community Development Resource Agency for the 
“Conditions of Approval for Coyote Hill Estates 
 

 
These findings were turned over to the engineers Guiliani & Kull, Inc. with 
instructions to prepare an aerial map of the tank site and surrounding area.  Mr. 
Tiffany displayed the said map and proceeded to apprise the Public of the 
District’s legal deeded access and showed the designated “Fire Protection 
Easement” as described in the Coyote Hill Estate Owner’s Statement, Sections 
2). E. & 4). D. 
Public Comment: 

• Mr. Goodin stated that there has been long term use of the road in 
question. 

• Disgruntled comments from several members of the public were heard. 

• Mr. Shykowski expressed his appreciation for the new tank storage and 
security. He also stated that he did not know about the deeded emergency 
access. He shared that a lot of hard feelings would have been alleviated 
had the neighbors been notified of the pending action being undertaken. 

• Ian Gow asked if the Fire Department will have access. He was assured 
that the fire department would have access. 

• Mrs. Nevins also commented that had general widespread information 
been available to those impacted by the fencing it might have been better 
received by the neighborhood. 

 
Mr. Horowitz, the District Counsel, explained that it was not a violation of the 
Brown Act for the Board to meet in closed session. That multiple rate increase 
notices had been sent and that two public hearings had been held about the 
project.  He advised that it was a liability to the District for not fencing and gating 
its property. Mr. Horowittz also defined for all that the Department of Public 
Health required that sufficient security fencing be installed as a condition of 
approving the Treated Tank Loan. The staff commented that increased security 
was also necessary because of theft and vandalism during the past several 
years. It was moved by Director Kanakaris and seconded by Treasurer W. 
Stevener to leave the fence “as is” to protect the District from lawsuits and 
thievery.  All Directors present voted Aye in favor of approving the motion.  
Opposed:  None 

 
For the record, Jim and Ruth Mehl’s assertion that the “Board just took my word for it” 
as a “security issue” are false. Per the above minutes, it was the District’s attorney. I 
presented the Board with two layouts. One that put gates across the dirt road and one 
that did not. One option considered for liability and security reasons was to fence the 
entire property. That would have required about 700 feet of additional fencing.  Fencing 
at prevailing wage is very expensive, about $30 to $40 a foot. The solution that the 



MHCWD              09/17/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-B 
 

  

Board decided on, in my opinion, was a balance between security and economics. The 
District has had multiple security issues with the dirt road in question, including two 
documents thefts, one during the time the Mehl’s managed the District (of note, that 
theft incident included my own personal tools that I was using since the District did not 
even own appropriate hand tools at that time). Along this same dirt road is a customer 
gate that was locked prior to the District gates and caused access issues for customers 
on the Natures Way side since they were never given keys. Nothing prevents that same 
gate from being locked again if the District relocates its gates (attachment #3).    
 
The fire easement that is in question and appears to be blocking is the one on which the 
District’s pump station is installed. The pump station was installed under the direction of 
Jim and Ruth Mehl during the time that they managed and operated this public agency 
from their personal residence while receiving a rent check from the Ditrict. The pump 
station blocks the actual designated fire easement for that area. The very same area the 
Mehl’s are accusing the District of blocking with gates. The pump station has other 
issues, such as no back up generator for the fire/irrigation pumps. The Mehl’s insisted 
that the developer put in three-phase power for the pumps but not a generator. See 
attachment #4, pages 174 to 178 from State Of California Fair Political Practices 
Commission Investigative Report, case NO: 2001/93 in which the District engineer 
resigned over what he called the micromanagement of the project by Midway Heights 
CWD. The generator is expensive because of the three-phase power. The District 
engineer estimated the cost of this project to be around $70,000. I have applied for 
grant money for this project. Note, the District recently installed a 220 volt backup pump 
that runs off a small portable  generator for the treated water.  
 
Please see attachments #1 (email from Ruth Mehl), attachment #2 (survey) and 
attachment #3 (pictures) attachment #4 (pages 174 to 178 from State Of California Fair 
Political Practices Commission Investigative Report, case NO: 2001/93) and attachment 
# 5 (memo from President Craig Stone). 



Attachment #1 

From: R-J Mehl  

Sent: Monday, September 30, 2019 1:12 PM 

To: Roy Ciardella  

Subject: District Blocked Community Fire Escape Route 

 

Hi Roy, 

 

My husband has requested that the following agenda item be added to the October 17th board meeting 

agenda: 

 

DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE:  DISTRICT BLOCKED ACCESS TO A COMMUNITY EMERGENCY FIRE ESCAPE 

ROUTE ON BRIDLE PATH ROAD AND NATURE’S WAY. 

 

Jason has presented this to the Board as a security issue in the past.  I feel pretty sure that the members of 

the Board have just taken his word for it.  We feel if you could actually see the position of the 2 gates, you 

would agree that there is no compromise to the security of the fenced tank site if the gates blocking the 

fire escape route were moved approximately 80 feet up the fenced access road to the treated tank site. 

 

This issue is of major concern to the members of the surrounding neighborhoods (including ourselves) 

that would benefit from having more than one escape route in case of a wild fire.  It is unreasonable to 

suppose that the fire department would prioritize unlocking these gates should they be called upon to 

fight a wild fire. 

 

We would really appreciate it if you could meet with us to view the escape route and district gates.  We 

are open to your schedule, and would appreciate a reply no matter what your decision. 

 

Thanks, 

Ruth Mehl 

 



GM Office
Callout
Fire easement

GM Office
Callout
Fire easement

GM Office
Callout
Pump station

GM Office
Typewritten Text
Attachment #2

GM Office
Typewritten Text



Attachment #3

District pump station

Gate installed by Coyote 
Hills Estates Homeowners

Fire easement behind 
pump station



GM Office
Typewritten Text
Attachment #4











Attachment #5 

1 
 

TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS, Agenda item V-B 
 
FROM: Craig Stone, Board President 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: COYOTE HILLS ESTATE PUMPING STATION, DEEDED FIRE 

EASEMENT, PUBLIC ACCESS TO DISTRICT EASMENTS AND ACCUSATION BY CUSTOMER JIM 
MEHL THAT THE DISTRICT BLOCKED ACCESS TO A COMMUNITY EMERENCY FIRE ESCAPE 
ROUTE ON BRIDLE PATH ROAD AND NATURE’S WAY. 

 
Analysis of a customer requested agenda item has identified a broader matter that must be considered 

with respect to the Coyote Hills Estate (CHE) pump station and associated easements. A survey 

conducted by a surveyor found the pump station encroaches on a recorded fire easement. 

Installation of the pump station was part of the very troubled Coyote Hills Estate (CHE) project that took 

place during the Mehl administration. Its placement and sizing were against the advice of the project 

engineer and that of field staff. Tensions between the project engineer and the administration rose to 

the point where the project engineer resigned. Other matters related to the administration of the 

project accelerated to the point where a complaint was filed with the Fair Political Practices Commission 

(FPPC). FPPC case 2001-0093 was opened, the CHE project was investigated, and by the end of this case 

a director was prosecuted, two directors resigned, and Ruth Mehl and Jim Mehl resigned. In 2019, I 

made a Public Records Act request to the FPPC for information on case 2001-0093 and I received a 187-

page document (CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials). Details of the matter relevant to this agenda item are 

provided in the background section. 

In preparation for this agenda item, I requested the General Manager give me a tour of the pump 

station easement and the area around the entry to the water tanks and District easements and 

property. This tour led to the identification of 3 issues the Board needs to address. Issue 2, Pump Station 

Electrical Safety, seems the highest priority item for the District to address. 

Issue 1: Encroachment of the Recorded Fire Easement by the Pump Station 

The pump station sits entirely on and completely blocks a recorded fire easement. On March 12, 1998, 

an easement (CHE easement) was granted by the CHE developer to Midway Heights for placement of 

the pump station, but the Mehl administration placed the pump station outside of the CHE easement 

and on the fire easement. 

The misplacement of the pump station is problematic. This fire easement slopes upward to the right of 

the pump station (when viewed from the street) and the grade is such that it prevents access by an 

emergency vehicle. To the left is a power pole with guy wires which similarly prevents emergency 

vehicle access. It could be possible to provide emergency vehicle access further to the left but the 

ground falls into a swale. Apparently, past illegal tree removal led Placer County to require this swale be 

maintained to manage erosion. 

Recommendation 1: Investigate whether it is feasible to obtain easements and make 

adjustments to the swale in order to establish a path for emergency vehicles traveling behind 

the pump house. 

Issue 2: Pump Station Electrical Safety 



Attachment #5 

2 
 

I have considerable concerns about the electrical system installed in the pump station. It seems 

overdesigned, not easily manageable, and risky. The background section speaks of the Mehl 

administration changing strategies with the developer and requiring three-phase power. This led to the 

requirement that a third powerline be strung up the road to the pump station. The pump station does 

not contain pumping capacity that requires three-phase power. Four pumps are in use: two 3 HP pumps 

are used for the treated water system; two 5 HP pumps are used for the irrigation system. Non-three-

phase 5 HP pumps are commonly available. 

Use of three-phase power hinders management of the pump station due to the risk of arc flashes. 

Specialized clothing must be worn (think moon landing suits) and the personnel must be skilled in three-

phase electrical systems. This means district personnel cannot themselves perform standard 

maintenance activities like swapping out a failing pump. This seems unreasonable. 

A serious concern is with a step-down transformer used to supply power to equipment. This transformer 

is very hot to the touch. If this is just eddy current heating it may call for an upgrade of the transformer 

to more modern versions designed to limit eddy currents. On the other hand, if the heating is due to 

harmonics we may have a significant transformer meltdown risk. 

Recommendation 2: Hire an expert on three-phase power systems to evaluate the options of 

(1) rebuilding the pump station to abandon three-phase power, and (2) making improvements 

to the current system. 

Issue 3: Midway Heights Property Access 

The request to grant access by the public is problematic. Prior to installation of the new tank and 

security gates, the community had an informal walking trail along a water pipe easement and across the 

Midway Heights property near the tank. This walking trail was blocked with the installation of the 

security fence. It has been maintained by the public that an emergency exit is needed for vehicles, but 

this path is insufficient as a formal road. Further, local fire agencies have in the past argued they need to 

keep public traffic on formal roads, allowing emergency vehicle access along this path. This prevents 

situations where public vehicles hinder emergency response by blocking the path. Currently, fire 

agencies can unlock the gates on the security fence to access this path. 

A second problem is having blocked the Midway Heights property with a security fence, reopening the 

path may lead to problems with landowners whose property the water pipe crosses. Previously this was 

an informal path. Action of the board will make it a formal path but this action should not be taken 

unless (1) the access does not create a violation of home-owner association rules, and (2) each of the 

impacted landowners agrees. This suggests the matter of requesting access to Midway Heights property 

is a broader matter, one in which Midway Heights plays a role limited to matters of security and liability. 

During the tour, the General Manager expressed concern about security of the Midway Heights 

property. He said that staff discovered equipment having been moved to a remote corner of the 

property, likely for future theft. Security cameras are in use and the fencing has been improved. Security 

issues could increase if the public access is granted on the Midway Heights property. Any decision by the 

board must be preceded with an evaluation of the impact to the security of the tanks, reservoir, 

equipment, and other facilities. 



Attachment #5 

3 
 

Recommendation 3: Re-evaluate access concerns of fire agencies on the Midway Heights 

property. 

Recommendation 4: Evaluate impact to Midway Heights liability with JPIA, including 

additional cost of insurance and JPIA conditions. 

Recommendation 5: Hire a security consultant to identify (1) improvements with the current 

property, and (2) impacts to security due to public access. 

Recommendation 6: Following implementing recommendations 3, 4, and 5, determine if and 

how it is feasible to grant public access to the Midway Heights property, including the cost of 

adapting Midway Heights facilities and other costs. 

Recommendation 7: Should the board determine it is feasible to grant public access to 

Midway Heights property, encourage the community to form a group that addresses access 

across non-Midway Heights properties and that identifies a source of funding for upgrading 

the entire trail, including that on Midway Heights property. The strawman model should be a 

path that supports walking, bicycle riding, and horseback riding. 

Background on the FPPC Case 

FPPC case 2001-0093 centered on two claims, that Midway Heights was trying to stop the Coyote Hills 

Estate project to prevent the developer from selling his land, and that a Midway Heights Director along 

with others were trying to buy the land. [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 171] A copy of the letter 

from the FPPC to the Mehl administration is provided below. [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 168] 



Attachment #5 

4 
 

 

Statements from the FPPC documents related to CHE land ownership are provided below. 

“We were charged around twenty five thousand dollars of inspection fees and legal fees for the 

construction of a ten by twelve pump house and four hundred feet of pipe. I saw a phone log 

entry that Mr. Wallace [MH Director] called Mrs. Mehl to suggest she pursue putting a lien on 

the project. Now I know why the District kept requesting multiple title reports.” [CPRA ENF 

2019-117 Materials, page 17] 

“On March 6, 1998 at 10:30 am, I received a call from an Ed Nagle (sp?) who represented 

himself as a friend of Dennis Mayer (owner of Andregg Inc., surveyor for Coyote Hill 

Subdivision). He asked to meet with me to discuss the subdivision. I explained to him that I was 

the lender and therefore not in a position to discuss anything regarding the subdivision without 

the written permission of the Geralds (owners). He asked if I would sell the note to him, and I 

indicated it was not for sale. He asked if the note was in default or foreclosure, to which I replied 



Attachment #5 

5 
 

he should check with the public records at the recorder’s office, but that I was not aware of any 

defaults.” [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 18] 

“Mr. Nagle went on to indicate that he lived in Coyote Hills and wanted to purchase the project 

and complete it.” [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 18] 

Regarding the pump station specifications, the FPPC documents contain the following statements: 

Ruth Mehl and Jim Mehl “do not have any experience in designing systems of this nature.” 

[CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 14] 

“The Water District Engineer Fred Fallen specializes in the design and construction of water 

systems and has many years of experience. Mr. Fallen also owns his own water company. Mrs. 

Mehl chose to ignore Mr. Fallen’s advice and instead followed Mr. Wallace’s [MH Director] 

advice to issue a stop order in fall of 1999. At this point Mr. Fallen resigned from the District.” 

[CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 14] 

“Either Fallen or Gerald could have built these pumps with blind folds on. The District began 

making unreasonable requests – requiring Gerald to resubmit plans and seek approval after 

every change was made in his effort to meet the requirements of the District. All the changes 

the District required was a benefit to MHWD. Finally, Fallen became ‘fed up’ and felt he was 

wasting everyone’s time and money.” [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 177]  

“Mr. Williams forced the project to undergo a two-month plan review for a small pump house 

that was already approved. At what we were lead to believe was a pre construction conference 

we finally met the engineer but he continued to refuse us permission to start construction and 

instead announced he was now requiring additional components to the system and plan review 

was going to continue.” [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 15] 

“On my first visit I was allowed to view the [phone] logs and read numerous entires describing 

phone calls from Mr. Wallace [MH Director] proving he was giving advice regarding the technical 

aspects of our project. I was refused copies and later Mr. Mehl destroyed them.” [CPRA ENF 

2019-117 Materials, page 15] 

“In the second instance, Sigmond himself caused the contact to me initiated. He felt the board 

was becoming too involved in the Coyote Hill Estates water project by trying to dictate what the 

specifications should be.“ [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 175] 

“He feels that Ken [Wallace], Ruth [Mehl], and Jim [Mehl] should all resign because they have 

the greatest conflicts and nepotism.” [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 175] 

This clipping was from a Midway Heights phone log and was part of the FPPC documentation. It is the 

first mention of three-phase power and apparently is related to the quotes provided above. [CPRA ENF 

2019-117 Materials, page 40] 



Attachment #5 

6 
 

 

Tensions heightened between the developer and Midway Heights which led to the project engineer 

resigning, and which led to the following exchange. This clipping was from a Midway Heights phone log 

and was part of the FPPC documentation. [CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials, page 41] Please note this is a 

classic Brown Act violation, one known as hub and spoke where the Mehl administration is the hub and 

three directors are the spokes. This is a documented violation of California law. 

 

 



MHCWD                     09/17/20 
MEMO                                     BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-C 

  

 
 
 

TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03 

BIENNIAL REVIEW OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 
 
The Political Reform Act requires every local government agency to review its conflict of interest code 
every two years to determine if it is accurate, or if amendments are needed.  
 
I had the Office of Placer County Counsel review the District’s old code. The suggested changes are 
marked up in the attachments. The main discussion is at the end of appendix A. 
 
Category 3: Investments, business positions in business entities, and sources of income, including 
receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments, from entities that provide services and supplies of the type 
utilized by the designated position’s division or department.  
 
Please note that the District used to have two appendixes, an A and a B. The prior appendix A was 
provisions of 2 CCR 18730. This attachment has been eliminated because the Office of Placer 
County Counsel felt that it was redundant and that the District would have to track any changes to 
those provisions and adopt a new resolution every time the provisions changed. The previous 
appendix B is now appendix A. 

Commented [MP1]: It only makes sense to have this 
category if your agency is big enough to have multiple 
divisions or departments. Otherwise, consider deletion of 
this category. 



 

MIDWAY HEIGHTS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

 
BOARDSMANSHIP: 

GUIDELINES REGARDING ABSTENTION FROM BOARD MEETING DISCUSSION & ACTION 
DUE TO A CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for individual Board members regarding potential 
conflict of interest situations which might require that they abstain from discussion and action on certain 
matters brought before the Board. The guidelines established here are based on existing conflict of 
interest laws established by the State of California, and are in no way meant to over-ride or circumvent these 
laws. 
 
 
 
The District adopts the provisions of 2 CCR 18730 and any amendments to it adopted by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission, together with the attached Appendix A specifying designated positions and 
disclosure categories, are incorporated by reference and shall constitute the Ddistrict's conflict of interest 
code. 
 
The District also adopts the following and are supersede by 2 CCR 18730 and any future amendments to 2 
CCR 18730: 
 

1) Abstention from Board discussion and action is always the responsibility of the individual director. While 
any director or member of the public may broach the subject of conflict of interest, no director or member of 
the public has the right or ability to force a director to abstain. Each director should carefully weigh specific 
situations which might represent a conflict of interest, both to protect him or herself, and to protect the 
District * (see notes that follow). 
 

2) When considering specific situations, a suspected conflict of interest should be judged against the criteria 
listed under the legal definition of that term. Individual directors, and the Board as a whole, should not be 
overly influenced by common public misconceptions of what constitutes a conflict of interest, as such 
widely diversified opinions and claims could seriously hamper the ability of the Board in the performance of 
its responsibilities. 

Formatted: Font: (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Left:  0.99", Right:  0.63", Top:  0.88",
Bottom:  1.14", Width:  11", Height:  8.5"

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  -0.43"



 

 
3) A conflict of interest, by legal definition, is here summarized in layman terms. A conflict of interest exists 

when all four of the following occur: 
a) a director uses his office to influence a governmental decision; and 
b) it is foreseeable that the decision will effect the director's economic interest; and 
c) the effect of the decision on the officials economic interest will be material 

** (see notes that follow); and 
d) the effect of the decision on the director's economic interest will be distinguishable from its effect on the 

general public *** (see notes that follow). 
 
NOTES: 

* Specific questions or complaints regarding conflict of interest can be directed to the Fair Political 
Practices Commission at the following address and/or telephone number: 

 
Fair Political Practices Commission 428 J Street, Suite 800 

P.O. Box 807 Sacramento, CA  95804 
(916) 322-5901 

 
** Examples of material effects include a change of $250 or more to the director's income; any financial 
impact on the director's employer, business, or real property if it is directly involved in the decision; or a 
change of $10,000 or more to the value of a director's real property if it is indirectly affected by the decision. 
 
*** A decision which has a financial effect on a director's interest will not create a conflict of interest if the 
decision will affect the director's interest in substantially the same manner as it affects all other persons in 
the director's jurisdiction or a significant segment of these persons. 
 
SOURCE DOCUMENT: Your Guide to Conflict of Interest Law: How We Govern Our Public Officials, 
prepared by the California Legislature Senate Committee on Local Government, 1992. 
 
 
The  following  guidelines  were  provided  by  ACWA  from  Guidelines for  Conduct and AB1234 
Compliance, 2006 update 
 
Public officials are required to conduct the public’s business free of prohibited conflicts of interest. Conflict 
of interest laws and implementing regulations are highly technical, and are updated periodically. As 
required by Government Code sections 53234 et seq., local public officials must complete specific ethics 
training. In addition to and consistent with such training, agencies should ensure that their public officials 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Bold, (Intl) Arial, Not
Expanded by / Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.07", Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Bold, (Intl) Arial, Not
Expanded by / Condensed by 

Formatted: Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Right:  0.07", Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Bold, Not Italic



 

continue to be informed of the requirements of conflict of interest laws, and that appropriate procedures 
have been adopted for their implementation. Paragraph B includes procedures consistent with recent 
changes to the law regarding disclosure of a conflict of interest, set forth in Government Code section 
87105. Paragraph C reflects an exercise of the Board’s discretion, and is not a legal requirement. 
 
A. A Director will not have a financial interest in a contract with the District/Agency, or be a purchaser at a 
sale by the District/Agency or a vendor at a purchase made by the District/Agency, unless the Director’s 
participation was authorized under Government Code sections 1091 or 1091.5, or other provisions of law. 
A Director will not participate in the discussion, deliberation or vote on a matter before the Board of 
Directors, or in any way attempt to use his or her official position to influence a decision of the Board, if he 
or she has a prohibited interest with respect to the matter, as defined in the Political Reform Act, 
Government Code sections 81000 et seq., relating to conflicts of interest. Generally, a Director has a 
financial interest in a matter if it is reasonably foreseeable that the Board decision would have a material 
financial effect (as defined by Fair Political Practices Commission [FPPC] regulations found at Cal. Code 
Regs., tit. 2, §§ 18100 et seq.) that is distinguishable from the effect on the public generally on (a) a 
business entity in which the Director has a direct or indirect investment in the amount specified in FPPC 
regulations; 
(b) real property in which the Director has a direct or indirect investment interest, with a value in the amount 
specified in FPPC regulations; (c) a source of income for the Director in the amount specified in FPPC 
regulations, within 12 months before the Board decision; 
(d) a source of gifts to the Director in an amount specified in FPPC regulations within 12 months before the 
Board decision; or (e) a business entity in which the Director holds a position as a director, trustee, officer, 
partner, manager or employee. An “indirect interest” means any investment or interest owned by the 
spouse or dependent child of the Director, by an agent on behalf of the Director, or by a business entity or 
trust in which the Director, or the Director’s spouse, dependent child or agent, owns directly, indirectly or 
beneficially a 10% interest or greater. An elected official will not accept honoraria or gifts that exceed the 
limitations specified in the Fair Political Practices Act or FPPC regulations. Directors will report all gifts, 
campaign contributions, income and financial information as required under the District/Agency’s Conflict of 
Interest Code and the provisions of the Fair Political Practices Act and FPPC regulations. (Gov. Code, 
§§ 87100 et seq.) 
Guidelines for Conduct and AB 1234 Compliance  
B. If a member of the Board believes that he or she may be disqualified from participation in the discussion, 
deliberations or vote on a particular matter due to a conflict of interest, the following procedure will be 
followed: (a) if the Director becomes aware of the potential conflict of interest before the Board meeting at 
which the matter will be discussed or acted on, the Director will notify the District/Agency’s General 
Manager and the District/Agency’s legal counsel of the potential conflict of interest, so that a determination 
can be made whether it is a disqualifying conflict of interest; (b) if it is not possible for the Director to 
discuss the 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.07", Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Italic, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Right:  0.07", Line spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt,
Tab stops:  0.58", Left



 

potential conflict with the General Manager and the District/Agency’s legal counsel before the meeting, or if 
the Director does not become aware of the potential conflict until during the meeting, the Director will 
immediately disclose the potential conflict during the Board meeting, so that there can be a determination 
whether it is a disqualifying conflict of interest; and (c) upon a determination that there is a disqualifying 
conflict of interest, the Director (1) will not participate in the discussion, deliberation or vote on the matter 
for which a conflict of interest exists, which will be so noted in the Board minutes, and (2) will leave the 
room until after the discussion, vote and any other disposition of the matter is concluded, unless the matter 
has been placed on the portion of the agenda reserved for uncontested matters or the Director has been 
advised that specific FPPC exemption applies. 
 
C. A Director will not recommend the employment of a relative by the District/Agency. A Director will not 
recommend the employment of a relative to any person known by the Director to be bidding for or 
negotiating a contract with the District/Agency. 
 
D. A Director who knowingly asks for, accepts or agrees to receive any gift, reward or promise thereof for 
doing an official act, except as may be authorized by law, may be guilty of a misdemeanor under Penal 
Code section 70. 
 
E. Effective July 1, 2006, no Director who leaves office with the District/Agency may represent another 
person or entity before that Agency for one year after leaving office. This prohibition is very broad and 
covers any appearance before the District/Agency or one of its committees or any written or oral 
communication with the Agency for the purpose of influencing any type of decision. This prohibition is the 
same as that for certain state officers. The limited exceptions are for the former Director to represent him or 
herself; represent another person or entity without compensation, or where the former Director is an 
employee, officer or Director of another public agency, and represents that other public agency. 
(However, be aware that a local public agency may adopt a stricter rule). (Gov. Code, §§ 1090 et seq., 
53232, 81000 et seq., and 87105; Pen. Code, §§ 68 and 70, see also 18 
U.S.C. §§ 1340 and 1346 federal statutes that prohibit certain actions intended to deprive another of the 
“intangible right of honest services.” This has been interpreted to include honest government services.) 
 
Individuals holding designated positions shall file their original Form 700/Statement of Economic Interests 
with the Placer County Elections Office, the District’s filing officer, which shall make the statements 
available for public review and inspection. 

Formatted: Right:  0.07", Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Right:  0.07", Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.07", Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Right:  0.07", Line
spacing:  Exactly 12.2 pt, Tab stops:  0.58", Left

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Expanded by / Condensed
by 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Expanded by / Condensed
by 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Not Expanded by / Condensed
by 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt



MIDWAY HEIGHTS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
APPENDIX A 

 
APPENDIX OF DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES AND DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 

 
I. Designated Positions: The employees and officers listed below are designated as persons who are deemed to 
make, or participate in the making of, decisions which may have a material effect on a financial interest. Persons 
holding designated positions listed below shall disclose financial interests and investments in accordance with the 
corresponding disclosure categories, which are defined in section II of this appendix. 

 
Designated Position Disclosure Categories 
Attorney 1, 2 
Consultant * 

 
*Consultants/New Positions: Consultants and new designated positions shall be included in the list of 

designated positions and shall disclose financial interests and investments in accordance with the broadest disclosure 
categories (e.g., 1 and 2) in the District’s conflict of interest code, subject to the following limitation: 

 
The General Manager may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a “designated position,” is 

hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure 
requirements described in this section. The General Manager’s written determination shall include a description of the 
consultant’s duties, and based on that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements. The written 
determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and location as the 
District’s conflict of interest code. The General Manager may designate narrower disclosure obligations for any new 
position or consultant using FPPC Form 804 or 805, respectively. 

 
Officials Who Manage Public Investments: The following positions are not covered by this conflict of interest 

code because they manage public investments within the meaning of Government Code §87200 and California Code 
of Regulations, title 2, §187020.3, and, therefore, the persons holding the following positions are listed for 
informational purposes only: 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Font: 14 pt



 
Members of the Board of Directors General Manager/Board Secretary 

 
An individual holding one of the above listed positions may contact the Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”) 
for assistance or written advice regarding their filing obligations if they believe that their position has been incorrectly 
categorized. The FPPC makes the final determination whether a position is covered by Government Code section 
87200. 

 
 
II. Disclosure Categories: 

 
Category 1: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all interests in real property located in the 

District or within two miles of the District’s boundaries. This disclosure category is not applicable to the person’s 
principal residence or to real property interests with a fair market value of less than $2,000. 

 
Category 2: Investments and business positions in business entities and income, including receipt of gifts, 

loans, and travel payments, from, sources that are contractors engaged in the performance of work or services of the 
type utilized by the District, or that manufacture, sell or provide supplies, machinery, services or equipment of the type 
utilized by the District. 

 

Category 3: Investments, business positions in business entities, and sources of income, including receipt of 
gifts, loans and travel payments, from entities that provide services and supplies of the type utilized by the designated 
position’s division or department. 

 

 
III. Filing of Form 700 Statements of Economic Interests. Individuals holding designated positions shall file 
their original Form 700 Statement of Economic Interests with Placer County Elections Office. 

 
 
 

 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Commented [MP1]: It only makes sense to have this 
category if your agency is big enough to have multiple 
divisions or departments. Otherwise, consider deletion of 
this category. 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, (Intl) Arial

Formatted: Heading 2, Right:  0.08", Space Before: 
2.85 pt, Tab stops:  1.57", Left



NOTICE OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER ELECTION AND/OR 
NOTICE TO SUBMIT MEASURE(S) TO A VOTE OF THE VOTERS 

 
 

Resolution No. 2020-03 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
 

Midway Heights County Water District 
 

AMENDING A CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Government Code 87300-87313, requires each public 
agency in California to adopt a conflict of interest code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Midway Heights County Water District has previously adopted a 

local conflict of interest code; and 

 

WHEREAS, past and future amendments to the Political Reform Act and implementing 
regulations may require conforming amendments to be made to the district's conflict of interest 
code; and 

 

WHEREAS, a regulation adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, 2 CCR 18730, 

provides that incorporation by reference of the terms of that regulation, along with an agency­ 

specific appendix designating positions and disclosure categories shall constitute the adoption and 

amendment of a conflict of interest code in conformance with Government Code 87300 and 

87306; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Midway Heights County Water District has recently reviewed its code and has 

determined that changes to the current conflict of interest code are necessary; and 

 

WHEREAS, any earlier resolutions, bylaws, and/or appendices containing the district's conflict 

of interest code shall be rescinded and superseded by this resolution and Appendix; and  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Midway Heights County Water District 

adopts the following Conflict of Interest Code including Appendix A: Designated Employees and 

Disclosure Categories. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body on September 17, 2020. 
 
 
AYES: _______________  _______________  _______________ 
 
 
   _______________  _______________   
 
 
NOES: _______________  _______________  _______________ 
 
 
   _______________  _______________   
 
 
ABSENT: _______________ _______________ 
 

______________________________ 
PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 

Craig Stone                                                   

ATTEST: ___________________________ 
                        SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
        Jason Tiffany 

 
 
 
 
 
 
(Seal) 

 



MHCWD              09/17/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-D 

  

 
 
 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE: SET DATE AND LOCATION FOR SPECIAL 

MEETING: CLOSED SESSION GENERAL MANAGER PERFORMANCE 
EVALUATION 

 
 
The General Manager review is typical preformed in April of each year. The review has been 
delayed because of COVID.  I do not think that a personal review should be done via remote 
meeting. The Meadow Vista Community Center is not available because of COVID. The District 
office is an option since it will only be five people (four Board members and myself) since it is a 
closed session agenda item. 
 
From the attorney: 
 
Meeting in person with the Board is okay, so long as you comply with all local physical distance 
requirements. Typically that means fewer than 10 people in one place and masking inside. The 
issue comes up that even with a special meeting with only a closed session, you still must start 
the meeting in open session and allow for public comment. That means either allowing people 
to come to the meeting in person (which likely would not comply with the local requirements), or 
having Zoom access to the meeting for at least the beginning of the meeting. I think the second 
option is easier. You can put on the agenda that no physical option is available and public 
access is only by Zoom. Then have a single laptop at the meeting to allow for the public 
comment portion, and, once comment is closed, disconnect from the Zoom meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MHCWD              09/17/20 
MEMO                        BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM  V-E 

  

 
 
 
TO: MHCWD  BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: Jason Tiffany 

 
RE: DISCUSSION & ACTION RE: APPOINTMENT OF AD-HOC COMMITTEE TO 

NEGOTIATE CHANGE TO GENERAL MANAGER’S COMPENSATION AND 
BENEFITS 

 
 
The Board typical reviews my compensation by ad-hoc committee. Does the Board want to form 
a committee? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *     
Balances shown for the MHCWD funds on deposit with the Placer County Treasurer were 

obtained from the most current reports provided to MHCWD by the Placer County Auditor’s Office. 
Y:\MHCWD-server-files\09-Financial\FUND SUMS\Fund Sums 2020\2020-09.docx 

MIDWAY  HEIGHTS  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT 

FUNDS  SUMMARY 
 

August 2020 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 17, 2020 

OPERATING  FUNDS: 
 

Placer County-MHCWD Investment Trust Fund (32005):    
Balance as of:  (07/31/20)                                        $619,113.66 

*(Includes: Department of Water Resources Loan Fund, Treated Water Capital Facilities Fund, 
Designated for Emergency Fund, Designated For Future Occurrences Fund, Current Fiscal Year 
Operation Fund, Rate Stabilization Fund, Undesignated Reserve Fund.) 

 
Wells Fargo Bank: 

Adjusted Bank Statement Balance (08/31/20–Reconciled to Checking Account #1670 General) **          $30,860.26 
Adjusted Bank Statement Balance (08/31/20–Reconciled to Checking Account #9798 Rate Payer) **        $10,992.27 
 

CALIFORNIA BANK & Trust: 
Adjusted Bank Statement Balance (08/31/20– Reconciled Money Market Account #6809 Tank Loan) **        $32,924.46                
 
**See the attached Reconciliation Summary and Check Register for detail. 

 
LOAN BALANCES 
 

STATE REVOLVING FUND (0.33 MG tank and improvements, 2014, 20 year loan) 
 Balance (07/31/20)                                                               $652,438.50 

 
WEST AMERICA BANK (loan for three new service trucks, 2019, five year loan) 
 Balance (12/31/19)                                                    $101,664.85 

 
APPROVAL OF ACCOUNT TRANSFERS & BILLS PAID FOR THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2020 

 
 
 

            _______________________________________ 
            Treasurer of the Board 
















	A 09-17-2020
	Minutes 2020-08-20-draft
	consent calander
	Fire easment
	email from Ruth Mehl
	Pump house highlighted
	Pump station blocking fire easement
	Pages from CPRA ENF 2019-117 Materials
	Coyote Hills Estate Pumping Station_final
	COI
	Conflict of Inteterst
	556176
	BOARDSMANSHIP:

	557226
	MIDWAY HEIGHTS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE
	Designated Position Disclosure Categories
	II. Disclosure Categories:
	Category 3: Investments, business positions in business entities, and sources of income, including receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments, from entities that provide services and supplies of the type utilized by the designated position’s division...



	Res 2020-03 conflict of interst
	GM review date and time
	GM ad-hoc
	FS 9-2020 combinded
	2020-09
	2020-9-17 fund sum detail




